Yes [/] No []

United States Securities and Exchange Commission Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q/A AMENDMENT NO. 1

[QUARTERLY REPORT

Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 For the Quarterly period Ended June 30, 2003

[] TRANSITION REPORT

Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

For the transition period from ______ to _____

Commission File Number 1-12984



Centex Construction Products, Inc.

A Delaware Corporation

IRS Employer Identification No. 75-2520779 2728 N. Harwood Dallas, Texas 75201 (214) 981-5000

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.)
Yes [
Indicate the number of shares outstanding of the registrant's Common Stock outstanding as of the close of business on August 8, 2003: 18,452,800

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Part I. Financial Information	(Unaudited)

Item 1.

Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Statements of Earnings

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Part II. Other Information

Item 6. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K

SIGNATURES

EX-31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer

EX-31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer

EX-32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer

EX-32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer

Centex Construction Products, Inc. and Subsidiaries Form 10-Q/A Table of Contents

June 30, 2003

This Form 10-Q/A of Centex Construction Products, Inc. (the "Company" or "CXP") for the three months ended June 30, 2003, is being amended to restate the financial statements of the Company to reflect a change in the method of accounting for the Company's interest in two cement joint ventures. **This restatement had no impact on our earnings before income taxes, net earnings, earnings per share or retained earnings.** In connection with this restatement, changes have been made to (i) amend Item 1. — Financial Information, (ii) amend Item 2. — Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and (iii) amend Item 6. — Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K to update the certifications of certain executive officers as of the date of this amendment. The amendments to Items 1 and 2 are being made in response to a comment letter received from the Securities and Exchange Commission. See Item 1. — Financial Information — Restatement of Financial Statements and Note (B) to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 1 for a discussion of the restatement of the financial statements referred to above. This Form 10-Q/A is hereby amended, as described above, and for convenience of reference is restated in its entirety as set forth herein (except that exhibits previously filed with the Form 10-Q are not being refiled in this Form 10-Q/A).

			Page		
Part I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (unaudited)					
	Item 1.	Consolidated Financial Statements	1		
		Consolidated Statements of Earnings for the Three Months Ended June 30, 2003 and 2002	2		
		Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2003 and March 31, 2003	3		
		Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Three Months Ended June 30, 2003 and 2002	4		
		Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements	5-15		
	Item 2.	Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition	15-23		
	Item 3.	Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	23-24		
	Item 4.	Controls and Procedures	24		
Part II.	OTHER	INFORMATION			
	Item 6.	Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K	24		
SIGNATURE	ES		25		

Centex Construction Products, Inc. and Subsidiaries Part I. Financial Information

Restatement of Financial Statements

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A (the "Quarterly Report") of Centex Construction Products, Inc. and subsidiaries ("CXP" or the "Company") reflects a change in our method of accounting for the Company's interests in two 50%-owned cement joint ventures that operate in Illinois and Texas (the "Joint Ventures"). For many years, the Company proportionately consolidated its pro rata interest in the revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities of the Joint Ventures. The Company has restated its consolidated financial statements to reflect a change in the method of accounting for the Joint Ventures from the proportionate consolidation method to the equity method of accounting. **The restatement had no impact on our earnings before income taxes, net earnings, earnings per share or retained earnings.** Under the equity method of accounting, the Company's statements of earnings include a single line item entitled "Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated Joint Ventures" which reflects the Company's 50% interest in the earnings of the Joint Ventures. Similarly, the Company's balance sheets include a single line item entitled "Investment in Joint Ventures" which reflects the Company's 50% interest in the net assets of the Joint Ventures.

This change is being made at the direction of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") in connection with its review of our preliminary proxy statement filed in connection with the proposed spin-off of the Company's shares held by Centex Corporation and certain related transactions, together with our periodic reports incorporated by reference in the proxy statement.

The Company is also concurrently filing with the SEC an amendment to its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 31, 2003 in order to reflect the use of the equity method of accounting for the Joint Ventures and to restate its financial statements as of the dates and for the periods covered by such report. **The restatements had no impact on our earnings before income taxes, net earnings, earnings per share or retained earnings.** For convenience of reference, this Quarterly Report is hereby amended and restated in its entirety (other than as to exhibits previously filed with the original Form 10-Q).

This amended Quarterly Report continues to speak as of the date of the original Quarterly Report and we have not updated the disclosure in this amended Quarterly Report to speak as of a later date.

Consolidated Financial Statements

Item 1.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and have been prepared by the Company, without audit, pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission. Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles have been condensed or omitted pursuant to such rules and regulations, although the Company believes that the disclosures are adequate to make the information presented not misleading. In the opinion of the Company, all adjustments (consisting solely of normal recurring adjustments) necessary to present fairly the information in the following unaudited consolidated financial statements of the Company have been included. The results of operations for such interim periods are not necessarily indicative of the results for the full year.

These unaudited consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the restated consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto included in the Company's latest Annual Report on Form 10-K/A. As discussed in Note B, to give effect to this change in presentation of the Company's investment in the two Joint Ventures, the Company is also concurrently filing an amendment on Form 10-K/A to reflect the restatement of its previously filed financial statements.

Centex Construction Products, Inc. and Subsidiaries Consolidated Statements of Earnings

(dollars in thousands, except per share data) (unaudited)

For the Three Months Ended June 30,

		2003	2002			
	(Posta	ted — Note B)	(Posta	ted — Note B)		
REVENUES	(IXESIA	ned — Note D)	(IXESIA	led — Note D)		
Cement	\$	27,923	\$	28,056		
Gypsum Wallboard		62,990		52,042		
Paperboard		16,684		14,132		
Concrete and Aggregates		16,547		15,085		
Other, net		259		253		
		124,403		109,568		
COSTS AND EXPENSES						
Cement		21,245		19,506		
Gypsum Wallboard		57,159		42,855		
Paperboard		11,009		10,264		
Concrete and Aggregates		15,121		13,780		
Corporate General and Administrative		1,468		1,402		
Interest Expense, net		1,492		2,563		
		107,494		90,370		
EQUITY IN EARNINGS OF UNCONSOLIDATED JOINT						
VENTURES		4,476		5,963		
EARNINGS BEFORE INCOME TAXES		21,385		25,161		
Income Taxes		7,162		8,426		
NET EARNINGS	\$	14,223	\$	16,735		
EARNINGS PER SHARE:						
Basic	\$	0.77	\$	0.91		
Diluted	\$	0.77	\$	0.90		
AVERAGE SHARES OUTSTANDING:						
Basic		18,406,710		18,482,708		
Diluted		18,508,491		18,660,657		
CASH DIVIDENDS PER SHARE	\$	0.05	\$	0.05		

 $See\ notes\ to\ unaudited\ consolidated\ financial\ statements.$

Centex Construction Products, Inc. and Subsidiaries Consolidated Balance Sheets

(dollars in thousands) (Unaudited)

	June 30, 2003 (Restated — Note B)		March 31, 2003 (Restated — Note B)		
ASSETS					
Current Assets-					
Cash and Cash Equivalents	\$	8,398	\$	6,795	
Accounts and Notes Receivable, net		51,773		42,209	
Inventories		47,218		49,138	
Total Current Assets		107,389		98,142	
Property, Plant and Equipment -		709,894		708,998	
Less: Accumulated Depreciation		(215,092)		(207,810)	
Property, Plant & Equipment, net		494,802		501,188	
Investment in Joint Ventures		51,668		53,741	
Notes Receivable, net		116		190	
Goodwill		40,290		40,290	
Other Assets		10,985		12,804	
	\$	705,250	\$	706,355	
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY					
Current Liabilities -					
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities	\$	63,625	\$	65,475	
Note Payable		0		25,257	
Current Portion of Long-term Debt		80		80	
Total Current Liabilities		63,705		90,812	
Long-term Debt		62,090		55,590	
Deferred Income Taxes		84,675		80,342	
Stockholders' Equity -					
Common Stock, Par Value \$0.01; Authorized 50,000,000 Shares; Issued and					
Outstanding 18,429,000 and 18,379,558 Shares, respectively		184		184	
Capital in Excess of Par Value		15,808		14,228	
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Losses		(1,995)		(2,282)	
Retained Earnings		480,783		467,481	
Total Stockholders' Equity		494,780		479,611	
	\$	705,250	\$	706,355	

See notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements

Centex Construction Products, Inc. and Subsidiaries Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(dollars in thousands) (unaudited)

For the Three Months Ended

June 30,

		2003	2002		
Cash Flows from Operating Activities	(Resta	ited — Note B)	(Restated — Note B)		
Net Earnings	\$	14,223	\$	16,735	
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Earnings to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities, Net of					
Effect of Non-Cash Activity -					
Depreciation, Depletion and Amortization		8,429		8,291	
Deferred Income Tax Provision		4,262		8,390	
Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated Joint Ventures		(4,476)		(5,963)	
Distributions From Joint Ventures		6,549		5,950	
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts and Notes Receivable		(9,492)		3,439	
Decrease (Increase) in Inventories		1,920		(2,650)	
Decrease in Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities		(3,099)		(6,442)	
Decrease in Other, net		316		1,258	
Increase in Income Taxes Payable		2,636		0	
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities		21,268		29,008	
Cash Flows from Investing Activities					
Property, Plant and Equipment Additions, net		(2,114)		(3,981)	
Proceeds from Asset Dispositions		740		1,750	
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities		(1,374)		(2,231)	
Cash Flows from Financing Activities					
Addition (Reduction) in Long-term Debt		6,500		(34,500)	
(Reduction) Addition to Note Payable		(25,257)		5,744	
Dividends Paid to Stockholders		(921)		(918)	
Retirement of Common Stock		0		(978)	
Proceeds from Stock Option Exercises		1,387		4,711	
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities		(18,291)		(25,941)	
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents		1,603		836	
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period		6,795		4,976	
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period	\$	8,398	\$	5,812	

See notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements

Centex Construction Products, Inc. and Subsidiaries Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements June 30, 2003

(A) BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Centex Construction Products, Inc. and its majority-owned subsidiaries ("CXP" or the "Company") after elimination of intercompany balances and transactions. CXP is a holding company whose assets consist of its investments in its subsidiaries, joint ventures, intercompany balances and holdings of cash and cash equivalents. The businesses of the consolidated group are conducted through CXP's subsidiaries. Investments in affiliated companies, owned 50% or less, are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. The Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated Joint Ventures has been presented in conformity with the Company's period end. See Note B.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

(B) RESTATEMENT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For many years, the Company proportionately consolidated its pro rata interest in the revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities of its 50% owned cement joint ventures. The Company has restated its financial statements to reflect a change in the method of accounting for the joint ventures from the proportionate consolidation method to the equity method of accounting. The restatement had no effect on the Company's earnings before income taxes, net earnings, earnings per share or retained earnings. Under the equity method of accounting, the Company's statements of earnings include a single line item entitled "Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated Joint Ventures" which reflects the Company's 50% interest in the results of operations of the joint ventures. Similarly, the Company's balance sheets include a single line item entitled "Investment in Joint Ventures" which reflects the Company's 50% interest in the net assets of the joint ventures. Consolidated financial statements and related financial information for all periods presented have been restated to reflect the current accounting for the interests in the joint ventures. The Company is also concurrently filing an amended Annual Report on Form 10-K/A for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003 in order to reflect the use of the equity method of accounting for the joint ventures and to restate its financial statements as of the dates and for the periods covered by such report. These restatements had no effect on the Company's earnings before income taxes, net earnings, earnings per share or retained earnings.

The Company's consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2003 and March 31, 2003, the statements of earnings for the three months ended June 30, 2003 and 2002, and related financial information have been restated as follows:

Common Stock

Retained Earnings

Capital in Excess of Par Value

Total Stockholders' Equity

Unamortized Value of Restricted Stock Accumulated Other Comprehensive Losses

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity

Table of Contents								
	For The Three Months Ended June 30, 2003			F	For The Three Months Ended June 30, 2002			
	I	Reported	I	Restated	F	Reported	Restated	
	_		_	(dollars	in thousan	ds)		
Statements of Operations Data:	¢	40, 471	¢	27.022	¢	40.001	¢	20.050
Cement Revenues	\$ \$	48,471 37,438	\$ \$	27,923 21,245	\$ \$	48,091 33,678	\$ \$	28,056 19,506
Cement Costs and Expenses Other, net	\$	37,436	\$	21,243	\$ \$	343	\$	253
Interest Expense	\$	1,486	\$	1,492	\$	2,554	\$	2,563
Total Revenues	\$	144,089	\$	124,403	\$	128,775	\$	109,568
Total Costs and Expenses	\$	122,704	\$	107,494	\$	103,614	\$	90,370
Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated Joint Ventures	· ·		\$	4,476	-	_	\$	5,963
The following amounts were unchanged as a result of the restatement:								
Earnings Before Income Taxes	\$	21,385	\$	21,385	\$	25,161	\$	25,161
Net Earnings	\$	14,223	\$	14,223	\$	16,735	\$	16,735
Diluted Earnings Per Share	\$	0.77	\$	0.77	\$	0.90	\$	0.90
	Jı	une 30, 200	3		March 31, 2003			
_	Reported		Restate		Report	ed	Re	estated
_			(dollars in the	ousands)			
Balance Sheet Data:								
Cash and Cash Equivalents	\$ 11,542		\$ 8,39		\$ 13,5		\$	6,795
Accounts Receivable and Notes Receivable, net	62,221		51,7		52,4			42,209
Inventories	54,894		47,2	18 —	58,2	54 —		49,138
Total Current Assets	128,657		107,3	39	124,3	51	9	98,142
Property Plant and Equipment	795,901		709,89		794,3			08,998
Accumulated Depreciation	(267,011)		(215,0		(259,5			07,810)
Investment in Joint Ventures	_		51,6	68				53,741
Notes Receivable, net	929		1	16	1,1	97		190
Goodwill	40,290		40,2		40,2	90		40,290
Other Assets	12,374		10,98	35 —	11,4	04		12,804
Total Assets	\$ 711,140		\$ 705,2	50	\$ 712,0	78	\$ 7	06,355
Note Payable	\$ 0		\$	0	\$ 25,2	 57	\$	25,257
Accounts Payable	29,888		26,6	23	29,3	02		26,178
Accrued Liabilities	39,287		37,0		41,5			39,297
Current Portion of Long-term Debt	80		;	30		80		80
Total Current Liabilities	69,255		63,70	 05	96,1	95		90,812
Long-term Debt	62,090		62,0		55,5			55,590
Deferred Income Taxes	84,794		84,6	75 —	80,4	61	_	80,342
Total Liabilities	216,139		210,4	70	232,2	46	2	26,744

184

15,808

(1,774)

480,783

495,001

\$ 711,140

184

15,808

(1,995)

480,783

494,780

\$ 705,250

184

14,228

(2,061)

467,481

479,832

\$ 712,078

184

14,228

(2,282)

467,481

\$ 479,611

\$ 706,355

	For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2003			For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2002				
	R	Leported	1	Restated	I	Reported		Restated
CASH FLOW DATA: Cash Flow from Operating Activities Cash Flow from Investing Activities	\$	21,638 (\$2,747)	\$	21,268 (\$1,374)	\$	29,069 (\$2,757)	\$	29,008 (\$2,231)
Cash Flow from Financing Activities		(\$18,291)		(\$18,291)		(\$25,941)		(\$25,941)

(C) STOCK-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

The Company accounts for employee stock options using the intrinsic value method of accounting prescribed by APB Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees," as allowed by SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation." Generally, no expense is recognized related to the Company's stock options because each option's exercise price is set at the stock's fair market value on the date the option is granted.

As of March 31, 2003, the Company adopted the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 148, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure." SFAS No. 148 provides for expanded disclosure concerning stock-based compensation, including disclosures in interim financial statements, and amends SFAS No. 123.

In accordance with SFAS No. 123, the Company discloses the compensation cost based on the estimated fair value at the date of grant. For disclosures under SFAS No. 123, employee stock options are valued at the grant date using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model and compensation expense is recognized ratably over the vesting period

If the Company had recognized compensation expense for the stock option plans based on the fair value at the grant dates for awards, pro forma net earnings for the three months ended June 30, 2003 and 2002 would be as follows:

	For the Three Months Ended June 30,				
	(dollars in thousands)				
	2003			2002	
Net Earnings					
As reported	\$	14,223	\$	16,735	
Deduct fair value of stock-based employee compensation, net of tax		(139)		(323)	
Pro forma	\$	14,084	\$	16,412	
Basic Earnings Per Share		ŕ		,	
As reported	\$	0.77	\$	0.91	
Pro forma	\$	0.77	\$	0.89	
Diluted Earnings Per Share					
As reported	\$	0.77	\$	0.90	
Pro forma	\$	0.76	\$	0.88	

(D) STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

A summary of changes in stockholders' equity follows:

							Accumulated	
			Ca	apital in			Other	
	Cor	nmon	Ex	xcess of	R	tetained	Comprehensive	
	St	ock	Pa	ır Value	E	arnings	Losses	Total
					(0	dollars in thous	ands)	
Balance March 31, 2002	\$	184	\$	15,153	\$	413,558	(\$1,063)	\$ 427,832
Net Earnings		0		0		57,606	0	57,606
Stock Option Exercises		2		5,678		0	0	5,680
Tax Benefit-Stock Option Exercise		0		1,530		0	0	1,530
Dividends To Stockholders		0		0		(3,683)	0	(3,683)
Unrealized Gain on Hedging Instruments		0		0		0	484	484
Accrued Pension Benefit Liability		0		0		0	(1,703)	(1,703)
Retirement of Common Stock		(2)		(8,133)		0	0	(8,135)
Balance March 31, 2003		184		14,228		467,481	(2,282)	479,611
Net Earnings		0		0		14,223	0	14,223
Stock Option Exercises		0		1,387		0	0	1,387
Tax Benefit-Stock Option Exercises		0		193		0	0	193
Dividends To Stockholders		0		0		(921)	0	(921)
Unrealized Gain on Hedging Instruments		0		0		0	287	287
Balance June 30, 2003	\$	184	\$	15,808	\$	480,783	(\$1,995)	\$ 494,780

(E) STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS — SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES

Cash payments made for interest were \$0.8 million and \$2.3 million for the three months ended June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Net payments made for federal and state income taxes during the three months ended June 30, 2003 and 2002 were \$16,500 and \$164,500, respectively.

(F) INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of average cost (including applicable material, labor, depreciation, and plant overhead) or market. Inventories consist of the following:

	June 30, 2003	March 31, 2003
	(dollar	s in thousands)
	(Restated — Note B)	(Restated — Note B)
Raw Materials and Material-in-Progress	\$ 14,293	\$ 13,970
Finished Cement	3,468	4,507
Gypsum Wallboard	6,550	5,520
Paperboard	4,671	4,819
Aggregates	2,524	3,021
Repair Parts and Supplies	15,291	16,668
Fuel and Coal	421	633
	\$ 47,218	\$ 49,138

(G) EARNINGS PER SHARE

The Company computes earnings per share in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 128, "Earnings Per Share." Basic earnings per share are computed using the average number of common shares outstanding in each of the three month periods ended June 30, 2003 and 2002. Diluted earnings per share for the periods ended June 30, 2003 and 2002 assume the dilutive impact of 101,781 and 177,949 shares, respectively, of stock options. Anti-dilutive options to purchase shares of common stock that were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share were 167,000 and 73,000 shares at an average price of \$41.98 and \$44.45 for the three months ended June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively. All anti-dilutive options have expiration dates ranging from April 2008 to May 2012.

(H) SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company operates in four business segments: Cement, Gypsum Wallboard, Recycled Paperboard, and Concrete and Aggregates, with Cement and Gypsum Wallboard being the Company's principal lines of business. These operations are conducted in the United States and include the following: the mining of limestone; the manufacture, production, distribution and sale of Portland cement (a basic construction material which is the essential binding ingredient in concrete); the mining of gypsum and the manufacture and sale of gypsum wallboard; the manufacture and sale of recycled paperboard to the gypsum wallboard industry and other paperboard converters; the sale of ready-mix concrete; and the mining and sale of aggregates (crushed stone, sand and gravel). These products are used primarily in commercial and residential construction, public construction projects and projects to build, expand and repair roads and highways. Demand for the Company's products are derived primarily from residential construction, commercial and industrial construction and public (infrastructure) construction which are highly cyclical and are influenced by prevailing economic conditions including interest rates and availability of public funds. Due to the low value-to-weight ratio of cement, concrete and aggregates, these industries are largely regional and local with demand tied to local economic factors that may fluctuate more widely than those of the nation as a whole.

As further discussed below, the Company operates four cement plants, ten cement distribution terminals, four gypsum wallboard plants, six gypsum wallboard reload centers, a gypsum wallboard distribution center, a recycled paperboard mill, nine readymix concrete batch plant locations and two aggregates processing plant locations. The principal markets for the Company's cement products are Texas, northern Illinois (including Chicago), the Rocky Mountains, northern Nevada, and northern California. Gypsum wallboard and recycled paperboard are distributed throughout the continental United States. Concrete and aggregates are sold to local readymix producers and paving contractors in the Austin, Texas area and northern California.

The Company conducts two out of four of its cement plant operations through joint ventures, Texas Lehigh Cement Company, which is located in Buda, Texas, and Illinois Cement Company, which is located in LaSalle, Illinois. For segment reporting purposes, the Company proportionately consolidates its 50% share of the cement joint ventures' revenues and operating income which, in accordance with FASB Statement 131, is consistent with the way management organizes the segments within the Company for making operating decisions and assessing performance.

The following table sets forth certain business segment information:

For The Three Months Ende	ed
June 30.	

		2003		
	(Resta	ted — Note B)	(Restat	ed — Note B
Revenues (External and Intersegment):		(dollars in t	housands)	1
Cement	\$	49,413	\$	48,817
Gypsum Wallboard	Ψ	62,990	Ψ	52,042
Paperboard		28,088		21,410
Concrete and Aggregates		16,813		15,235
Other, net		259		253
Less: Intersegment Revenues		(12,647)		(8,346)
Less: Joint Venture Revenues		(12,047) $(20,513)$		(19,843)
Less. John Vendue Revendes		(20,513)		(19,043)
	\$	124,403	\$	109,568
Intersegment Revenues:				
Cement	\$	977	\$	918
Paperboard		11,404		7,278
Concrete and Aggregates		266		150
	 \$	12,647	\$	8,346
International Calca Values of	_	(ti th		
Intersegment Sales Volumes: Cement		(tons in th 16	ousands)	14
Paperboard		25		17
Concrete and Aggregates		48		33
Cement Sales Volumes:		(tons in th	ousands)	
Wholly Owned		363		358
Joint Ventures		303		287
		666		645
Operating Earnings (Loss):		(dollars in t	housands))
Cement	\$	11,154	\$	14,512
Gypsum Wallboard		5,831		9,187
Paperboard		5,675		3,869
Concrete and Aggregates		1,426		1,305
Other, net		259		253
Sub-Total		24,345		29,126
Corporate General and Administrative		(1,468)		(1,402)
Earnings Before Interest and Income Taxes		22,877		27,724
Interest Expense, net		(1,492)		(2,563)
Earnings Before Income Taxes	\$	21,385	\$	25,161
Cement Operating Earnings:		(dollars in t	housands))
Wholly Owned	\$	6,678	\$	8,549
Joint Ventures		4,476	_	5,963
	\$	11,154	\$	14,512

Total assets by segment are as follows:

June 30, 2003		March 31, 2003		
(dollars in thousands)				
(Restate	ed — Note B)	(Restat	ted — Note B)	
\$	135,985	\$	135,894	
	323,619		322,580	
	191,119		193,661	
	36,717		35,100	
	17,810		19,120	
\$	705,250	\$	706,355	
	(Restate	(dollars in (Restated — Note B) \$ 135,985 323,619 191,119 36,717 17,810	(dollars in thousands) (Restated — Note B) (Restated) \$ 135,985 \$ 323,619 191,119 36,717 17,810	

(1) Basis conform with equity method of accounting.

Segment operating earnings, including the proportionately consolidated 50% interest in the revenues and expenses of the joint ventures, represent revenues less direct operating expenses, segment depreciation, and \$6.5 million and \$6.0 million of segment selling, general and administrative expenses for the three months ended June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Intersegment sales are recorded at prices which approximate market prices. Corporate assets consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, general office assets and miscellaneous other assets. Goodwill at June 30, 2003 and March 31, 2003 was \$40.3 million. The breakdown of segment goodwill was Gypsum Wallboard at \$33.3 million and Paperboard at \$7.0 million.

Combined summarized financial information for the two jointly owned operations that are not consolidated is set out below (this information includes the total related joint ventures amounts and not CXP's 50% interest in those amounts):

		For the Three Months Ended June 30,				
		2003 2003				
		(dollars in	thousands)			
Revenues	\$	40,726	\$	39,384		
Gross Margins	\$	10,588	\$	13,267		
Earnings Before Income Taxes	\$	8,952	\$	11,926		
	J	une 30,	M	arch 31,		
		2003		2003		
		 (dollars in	thousands)			
Current Assets	\$	45,122	\$	50,360		
Non-Current Assets	\$	69,992	\$	68,566		
Current Liabilities	\$	11,179	\$	11,446		

(I) COMPREHENSIVE LOSSES

Comprehensive losses are defined as the total of net losses and all other non-owner changes in equity. The unrealized loss on hedging instruments represents the deferral in other comprehensive earnings of the unrealized loss on swap agreements designated as cash flow hedges. The accounting for interest rate swaps and other derivative financial instruments is discussed in detail in Note (L) of this report. The unrealized gains and losses, net of deferred tax, are excluded from earnings and reported in a separate component of stockholders' equity as "Accumulated Other Comprehensive Losses."

As of June 30, 2003, the Company has a cumulative comprehensive loss of \$1,703,000, net of income taxes of \$918,000, in connection with recognizing an additional minimum pension liability. The Company also recorded a cumulative comprehensive loss of \$292,000, net of income taxes of \$158,000, in connection with its interest rate swaps. See Note (L) of this report.

(J) RISK FACTORS

The majority of the Company's business is seasonal with peak revenues and profits occurring primarily in the months of April through November. Bad weather conditions during this period could adversely affect operating income and cash flow and could therefore have a disproportionate impact on the Company's results for the full year. Quarterly results have varied significantly in the past and are likely to vary significantly from quarter to quarter in the future.

A majority of the Company's revenues are from customers who are in industries and businesses that are cyclical in nature and subject to changes in general economic conditions. In addition, since operations occur in a variety of geographic markets, the Company's business is subject to the economic conditions in each such geographic market. General economic downturns or localized downturns in the regions where the Company has operations, including any downturns in the construction industry, and announced increases in capacity in the gypsum wallboard, paperboard and cement industries, could have a material adverse effect on the Company's business, financial condition and results of operations. In general, the Company is subject to the risks and uncertainties of the construction industry and of doing business in the U.S. See Item2, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition — Forward Looking Statements."

The Company's operations are subject to and affected by federal, state and local laws and regulations including such matters as land usage, street and highway usage, noise level and health, safety and environmental matters. In many instances, various permits are required. Although management believes that the Company is in compliance in all material respects with regulatory requirements, there can be no assurance that the Company will not incur material costs or liabilities in connection with regulatory requirements.

Certain of the Company's operations may from time to time involve the use of substances that are classified as toxic or hazardous substances within the meaning of these laws and regulations. Risk of environmental liability is inherent in the operation of the Company's business. As a result, it is possible that environmental liabilities could have a material adverse effect on the Company in the future.

(K) NET INTEREST EXPENSE

The following components are included in interest expense, net:

Three Months Ended	
June 30,	

	2003	2	002
	(dollars in	thousands)	
(Restated	l — Note B)	(Restated	— Note B)
\$	(2)	\$	(8)
	1,017		2,213
	477		358
\$	1,492	\$	2,563

Interest (Income)
Interest Expense
Other Expenses
Interest Expense, net

Interest income includes interest on investments of excess cash and interest on notes receivable. Components of interest expense include interest associated with the subordinated debt, the bank credit facility, the accounts receivable securitization facility and commitment fees based on the unused portion of the bank credit facility. Other expenses include amortization of debt issue costs and bank credit facility costs.

(L) DERIVATIVES AND HEDGING

The Company does not use derivative financial instruments for trading purposes, but utilizes them to convert a portion of its variable-rate debt to fixed-rate debt and to manage its fixed to variable-rate debt ratio. All derivatives, whether designated in hedging relationships or not, are required to be recorded on the balance sheet at fair value. If the derivative is designated as a cash flow hedge, the effective portions of changes in the fair value of the derivative are recorded in other comprehensive losses and are recognized in the statement of operations when the hedged item affects earnings. Ineffective portions of changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges are immediately recognized in earnings.

The Company has an interest rate swap agreement with a bank for a total notional amount of \$55.0 million. This agreement expires on August 28, 2003. The swap agreement can be matched against \$55.0 million of variable-rate LIBOR indexed debt principal and will effectively fix the Company's interest rate on that debt at 4.493%, plus the applicable margin on the Company's debt. As of June 30, 2003, the fair value of the swap agreement was a liability of approximately \$450,000, \$292,000 net of tax. Hedge ineffectiveness, determined in accordance with SFAS No. 133, had no impact on the Company's results of operations for the quarter ended June 30, 2003 and fiscal year ended March 31, 2003.

(M) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company has certain deductible limits under its workers' compensation and liability insurance policies for which reserves are established based on the undiscounted estimated costs of known and anticipated claims. The Company has entered into standby letter of credit agreements relating to workers' compensation and auto and general liability self-insurance. At June 30, 2003, the Company had contingent liabilities under these outstanding letters of credit of approximately \$5.7 million.

In the normal course of business, the Company is currently contingently liable for performance under \$3.2 million in performance bonds required by certain states and municipalities, and their related agencies. The majority of the bonds are for certain reclamation obligations and mining permits. The Company has indemnified the underwriting insurance company against any exposure under the performance bonds. In the Company's past experience, no material claims have been made against these financial instruments.

(N) ACCOUNTING FOR ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

Effective April 1, 2003, the Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 143, "Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations." This statement applies to legal obligations associated with the retirement of long-lived assets that result from the acquisition, construction, development and/or the normal operation of a long-lived asset.

This statement requires legal obligations associated with the retirement of long-lived assets to be recognized at their fair value at the time that the obligations are incurred. Upon initial recognition of a liability, that cost is capitalized as part of the related long-lived asset. The asset is depreciated and the liability is accreted over the useful life of the asset. All of the Company's asset retirement obligations are incurred as reclamation liabilities related to its mining operations. Application of the new rules resulted in a pre-tax cumulative charge of \$0.4 million. Since the amount was immaterial, it was recorded in operating results.

(O) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Spin-Off of CXP

On July 21, 2003, the Company announced that it reached an agreement with Centex Corporation ("Centex") for the spin-off of all the Company's shares owned by Centex. Centex owns approximately 64.6% of the outstanding shares of CXP. Under the agreement, the Company would reclassify its shares of common stock into two classes and pay a special one-time cash dividend of \$6.00 per share to all of its shareholders (including Centex) immediately prior to the spin-off. It is anticipated that the cash dividend and the spin-off will be completed in January 2004. The Company's board of directors formed a special committee consisting solely of independent directors to evaluate the spin-off and related transactions. In conjunction with its legal and financial advisors, the special committee reviewed the proposed transaction, and then negotiated with Centex to achieve the agreement.

The agreement with Centex provides that the spin-off of CXP may only be accomplished on a tax-free basis. The Company has been advised by Centex that it has received from the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") a private letter-ruling request confirming that the spin-off would receive tax-free treatment. Under the terms of the agreement with Centex, approximately 77% of the shares of common stock of CXP currently held by Centex would be recapitalized into a newly established Class B Common Stock which would be identical in all respects to CXP's existing common stock except that the new Class B Common Stock would be entitled as a class to elect at least 85% of the Company's Board of Directors. Upon completion of the recapitalization, the Class B Common Shares and the remaining CXP common stock owned by Centex would be distributed by Centex to the Centex shareholders. After the completion of the spin-off, the Class B Common Stock will represent approximately 50% of the total CXP shares outstanding. As noted earlier, the agreement also provides that immediately prior to the spin-off, CXP would pay a special one-time cash dividend to all of its stockholders (including Centex) of \$6.00 per share. Such dividend would only be paid in conjunction with the spin-off and will likely be funded in large part through borrowings made by the Company. The Company's total debt balance at June 30, 2003 was \$62.2 million.

The spin-off transaction will require approval by the CXP stockholders (including the majority of the CXP common stock not held by Centex). The listing of the new Class B Common Stock of CXP will also require the approval of the New York Stock Exchange. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that the spin-off or any of the other transactions described above will occur on the terms described above, if at all.

(P) RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain fiscal 2003 balances were reclassified to conform with the fiscal 2004 presentation.

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition

Overview

Unless otherwise noted, all references to our quarterly results for the three ended June 30, 2003 and 2002 in Item 2, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition" refer to our restated results for such period.

Information for the quarter presented reflects the grouping of the Company's businesses into four segments, consisting of Cement, Gypsum Wallboard, Recycled Paperboard and Concrete and Aggregates. Certain information for Concrete and Aggregates is broken out separately in the segment discussions.

Commercial construction remains at a depressed level. Highway funding is erratic as states address their budget problems. The Austin, Texas market, which is the Company's primary Concrete and Aggregates market, is still depressed. However, national new housing construction and home repair activity remains strong.

U.S. Cement consumption continues strong, although down slightly from the same period last calendar year. U.S. Gypsum Wallboard consumption for the first half of calendar 2003 is up slightly over the same period last year. Gypsum Wallboard pricing is erratic as the industry wrestles with its manufacturing "over capacity" issue. The May 2003 Gypsum Wallboard price increase eroded by the end of the June 30, 2003 quarter. Another Gypsum Wallboard price increase has been announced for early August 2003. Sales volume in CXP's markets were strong as the Company reported increased sales volume in all of its segments, except for Aggregates.

The Company conducts two out of four of its cement plant operations through joint ventures, Texas Lehigh Cement Company, which is located in Buda, Texas, and Illinois Cement Company, which is located in LaSalle, Illinois. CXP owns a 50% interest in each joint venture and accounts for its interest under the equity method of accounting. However, for purposes of the Results of Operations information presented below, the Company proportionately consolidates its 50% share of the cement joint ventures' revenues and operating earnings, which, consistent with FASB Statement 131, is consistent with the way management organizes the segments within the Company for making operating decisions and assessing performance. See Note H of this report for additional segment information.

Results of Operations

CXP reported a 15% decline in net earnings as a result of decreased Cement and Gypsum Wallboard operating earnings, partially offset by increased Paperboard operating earnings and lower interest expense. CXP's net earnings of \$14,223,000 for the first quarter this year were down 15% from \$16,735,000 for the same quarter last year. Revenues for the first quarter of fiscal 2004 were \$124,403,000, up 14% from revenues of \$109,568,000 for the same quarter last year. The increase in revenues was due mostly to higher Gypsum Wallboard and Paperboard sales volume. Diluted earnings per share for this fiscal year's first quarter of \$0.77 were down 15% from \$0.90 per share for the same quarter in fiscal 2003.

The following table compares sales volume, average unit sales prices and unit operating margins for the Company's segments operations (see Note H):

		Cement	(Toı	lon) (Gypsum Wallboard (MSF) Paperboard (Ton) C		Concrete (Cubic Yard)				Aggregates (Ton)							
	_ :	2003		2002		2003		2002	2003		2002		2003	_ :	2002	_ :	2003		2002
Quarter Ended June 30 Sales Volume (M) Average Net Sales price (2) Operating Margin (23	\$	666(1) 66.56 16.74	\$	645(1) 67.88 22.49	\$ \$	586 82.72 9.95	\$ \$	454 92.53 20.24	\$ 67 410.15 84.70	\$ \$	56 379.68 69.09	\$	209 52.97 6.09	\$	175 54.88 6.63	\$ \$	1,059 5.23 0.15	\$	1,244 4.19 0.12

- (1) Total of wholly owned and proportionately consolidated 50% interest of joint ventures cement sales volume.
- As historically reported. Does not include freight and delivery costs billed to customers.
- (3) Operating margins represents operating earnings as reported in Note H divided by sales volume.

Cement revenues for the current quarter totaled \$49,413,000, up 1% from \$48,817,000 for the same quarter in the prior year. Operating earnings for the current quarter were \$11,154,000, a 23% decrease from \$14,512,000 for the same quarter last year. Higher manufacturing costs accounted for the majority of the quarterly operating earnings decline. Sales volume of 666,000 tons for the quarter was 3% above sales volume of 645,000 tons for the same quarter last year due to increased sales volume in CXP's western California and Illinois markets. Purchased cement sales volume of 32,100 tons for this year's first quarter was 9% above the same period last year. Demand continues to be strong in all of the Company's cement markets and the Company expects fiscal 2004 to be another "sold out" year. Total U.S. Portland cement shipments of 29.2 million metric tons through April 2003 were 4% lower than the prior year's same period. Cement imports through March 2003 were 4.1 million metric tons, 15% below last year's same period. The average cement net sales price for the first quarter this fiscal year was \$66.56 per ton, 2% lower than \$67.88 per ton for the quarter ended June 30, 2002, due to lower sales prices in the Texas and northern California markets. Cost of sales of \$49.82 per ton for the quarter increased 10% over the prior year's first quarter due to higher maintenance costs, the timing of scheduled kiln outages and increased power cost.

Gypsum Wallboard revenues of \$62,990,000 for the current quarter were 21% greater than last year's same quarter revenues of \$52,042,000. Operating earnings for the quarter were \$5,831,000, 37% below operating earnings of \$9,187,000 for the same period last year, primarily due to decreased sales prices. Sales volume of 586 million square feet ("MMSF") for this year's quarter was 29% higher than the 454 MMSF sold during the prior year's quarter. The Company's wallboard plants ran at approximately 93% of total capacity during this year's first quarter. National wallboard consumption of 15.4 billion square feet through June 2003 was up 1% from last year's same period consumption. The Company's average net sales price for the quarter decreased 11% to \$82.72 per thousand square feet ("MSF") from \$92.53 per MSF for the same quarter last year. The May 2003 price increase had completely eroded by the end of the quarter, but a 12% price increase has been announced for the second week of August 2003,

although there can be no assurance that this price increase will hold. Cost of sales of \$72.77 per MSF was level with last year's quarter despite higher natural gas cost in this year's first quarter. Gas cost was \$1.8 million higher than prior year's first quarter gas cost.

Paperboard reported revenues of \$28,088,000 and an operating profit of \$5,675,000 for the first quarter of fiscal 2004, up 31% and 47%, respectively, compared to revenues of \$21,410,000 and an operating profit of \$3,869,000 for last year's first quarter. The revenue and earnings gain resulted from increased sales volume and higher sales prices. The average net sales price of \$410.15 per ton for the quarter was up 8% from \$379.68 per ton for last year's first quarter. Paperboard sales volume was 67,000 tons, an increase of 20% compared to 56,000 tons in last year's first quarter. Cost of sales of \$325.45 per ton increased 5% from last year's first quarter due to increased energy and chemicals costs, partially offset by the positive volume impact on fixed costs.

Revenues from Concrete and Aggregates were \$16,813,000 for the quarter, up 10% from \$15,235,000 for the same quarter a year ago. Concrete and Aggregates reported operating earnings of \$1,426,000 for the quarter, up 9% from \$1,305,000 for the same quarter last year. Higher Concrete sales volume accounted for the majority of the earnings increase. Concrete operating earnings of \$1,271,000 increased 10% from last year's comparable quarter mainly due to an increase in sales volume at the Company's Texas concrete operations. Concrete sales volume for the quarter was 209,000 cubic yards, up 34,000 cubic yards for the same quarter last year. The Company's average Concrete net sales price of \$52.97 per cubic yard for the quarter was 3% below \$54.88 per cubic yard for the same quarter a year ago. Cost of sales of \$46.88 per cubic yard decreased 3% from the same quarter last year of \$48.25. Aggregates operating earnings of \$155,000 for the current quarter increased 3% from the prior year's first quarter. The Company's Aggregates operation reported sales volume of 1,059,000 tons for the quarter, 15% below sales volume of 1,244,000 tons for the same quarter last year. The sales volume decrease came mostly from decreased road aggregates sales at its Texas Aggregates operation due to the closure of the Georgetown quarry in last fiscal year's second quarter. Aggregates net sales price of \$5.23 per ton, increased 25% from \$4.19 per ton for the same quarter last year due to closure of the Georgetown quarry and the elimination of lower priced road aggregates sales volume. Cost of sales for the current quarter increased \$1.01 per ton to \$5.08 per ton due to increased production costs at the California operation.

Other income consists of a variety of items that are non-segment operating in nature and includes clinker sales income, non-inventoried aggregates income, gypsum wallboard distribution center income, recycled fiber collection centers earnings, trucking income, asset sales and other miscellaneous income and cost items.

Corporate general and administrative expenses for the three months ended June 30, 2003 were \$1,468,000 compared to \$1,402,000 for the same period last year. The increase was primarily the result of higher office expenses.

Net interest expense of \$1,492,000 for the first quarter of fiscal 2004 declined from net interest expense of \$2,563,000 for last year's first quarter due to lower debt balances and reduced borrowing costs.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company funds the growth of its business through the combination of cash flow from operations and bank borrowings. Liquidity is not currently dependent on the use of off-balance sheet transactions other than normal operating leases. The Company currently believes

that cash on hand, cash provided by operations and funds available under its current bank credit facility should be sufficient to cover working capital needs, capital expenditures, dividends and debt service requirements for the next twelve months. Prior to the anticipated January 2004 spin-off date, the Company anticipates entering into a new bank credit agreement. The payment of the \$6.00 special dividend (approximately \$112 million) will be funded by the Company largely through borrowings by the Company under the new bank credit agreement. Based on, among other things, current stockholders' equity and the Company's expected debt balance immediately prior to the spin-off, the Company expects that its debt-to-capitalization ratio immediately after the spin-off will be approximately 22%. See Note (O) of this report.

Other than the bank credit facility, the Company has no other financing alternatives in place. If the bank credit facility is terminated, no assurance can be given as to the Company's ability to secure a new source of financing. Consequently, if a balance is outstanding on the bank credit facility at the time of termination, and an alternative source of financing cannot be secured, it would have a material adverse impact on the Company.

On March 25, 2003, pursuant to the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, the First Amended Credit Facility (the "Amended Credit Facility") was amended to reduce the facility amount from \$175.0 million to \$155.0 million, modify certain financial and other covenants and extend the maturity date three years (the "Current Credit Facility"). The principal balance of the Current Credit Facility matures on March 25, 2006. At June 30, 2003 and March 31, 2003, the Company had \$61.5 million and \$55.0 million outstanding under the Current Credit Facility, respectively. The borrowings under the Current Credit Facility are guaranteed by all major operating subsidiaries of the Company. At the option of the Company, outstanding principal amounts on the Current Credit Facility bear interest at a variable rate equal to: (i) LIBOR, plus an agreed margin (ranging from 100 to 200 basis points), which is to be established quarterly based upon the Company's ratio of EBITDA to total funded debt; or (ii) an alternate base rate which is the higher of (a) the prime rate or (b) the federal funds rate plus 1/2% per annum, plus an agreed margin (ranging from 0 to 100 basis points). Interest payments are payable monthly or at the end of the LIBOR advance periods, which can be up to a period of six months at the option of the Company. Under the Current Credit Facility, the Company is required to adhere to a number of financial and other covenants, including covenants relating to the Company's interest coverage ratio, consolidated funded indebtedness ratio and minimum tangible net worth. The Company had \$87.8 million and \$91.2 million of borrowings available at June 30, 2003 and March 31, 2003, respectively.

On June 29, 2001, the Company entered into a \$50 million trade receivable securitization facility (the "Receivables Securitization Facility"), which is funded through the issuance of commercial paper and backed by a 364-day committed bank liquidity arrangement. The Receivables Securitization Facility has a termination date of June 10, 2004, subject to a 364-day bank commitment that was renewed on June 28, 2002 for another 364-day period terminating on June 28, 2003. The purpose of the Receivables Securitization Facility is to obtain financing at a lower interest rate by pledging accounts receivable. The Receivables Securitization Facility is fully consolidated on the balance sheet. Subsidiary company receivables are sold on a revolving basis first to the Company and then to a wholly-owned special purpose bankruptcy remote entity of the Company. This entity pledges the receivables as security for advances under the facility. The borrowed funds are used to pay down borrowings under the Current Credit Facility. Outstanding principal amounts under the Receivables Securitization Facility bear interest at the commercial paper rate plus a facility fee. Under the Receivables Securitization Facility, the Company is required to adhere to certain financial and other covenants that are similar to those in the New Credit Facility. The Company paid off the Receivables Securitization Facility on June 27, 2003, and did not renew the facility for the third year.

The Company uses interest rate swaps to mitigate interest rate risk associated with its variable rate debt. The Company entered into an interest rate swap agreement which has the effect of converting a total notional amount of \$55.0 million of the Company's debt from a variable rate of interest to a fixed rate of interest. The Company receives three month LIBOR and pays a fixed rate of interest under these agreements. This agreement expires on August 30, 2003. At June 30, 2003, the Company recorded a cumulative net after-tax loss of \$292,000 to accumulated other comprehensive losses for the change in fair value of the swap agreement.

The Company does not have any other transactions, arrangements or relationships with "special purpose" entities, and the Company does not have any off balance sheet debt. Also, the Company has no outstanding debt guarantees. The Company has available under the New Credit Facility a \$50.0 million Letter of Credit Facility. At June 30, 2003, the Company had \$5.7 million of letters of credit outstanding that renew annually. Also, the Company is contingently liable for performance under \$3.2 million in performance bonds.

Based on its financial condition at June 30, 2003, CXP believes that its internally generated cash flow coupled with funds available under the Credit Facility will enable the Company to provide adequately for its current operations, dividends and future growth. Prior to the spin-off the Company anticipates entering into a New Credit Facility to be utilized for the payment of the special dividend (approximately \$112 million). The Company was in compliance at June 30, 2003 and during the quarter ended June 30, 2003 with all the terms and covenants of its credit agreements.

Working capital at June 30, 2003 was \$43.7 million compared to \$7.3 million at March 31, 2003. The increase resulted from the \$25.3 million payoff of the Receivables Securitization Facility, a \$9.5 million increase in accounts receivable and a \$1.6 million increase in cash, partially offset by a \$1.9 million decrease in inventories.

Cash and cash equivalents increased \$1.6 million from March 31, 2003 to \$8.4 million at June 30, 2003. The net cash provided by or used in the operating, investing, and financing activities for the three months ended June 30, 2003 and 2002 is summarized as follows:

03	2002

For The Three Months Ended June 30,

	2003		2002
	(dollars in	thousands)	
(Restate	ed — Note B)	(Restate	ed — Note B)
\$	21,268	\$	29,008
	(1,374)		(2,231)
	(18,291)		(25,941)
\$	1,603	\$	836

Net Cash Provided by (Used In): **Operating Activities Investing Activities** Financing Activities Net Increase in Cash

Cash provided by operating activities of \$21.3 million for the first three months of fiscal 2004 decreased \$7.7 million from last fiscal year's three month period due to a \$2.5 million decrease in net earnings, a \$3.9 million decrease in deferred tax liability and depreciation, a \$0.6 million increase in joint venture cash distribution and a \$3.3 million decrease in net working capital. Cash used for investing activities of \$1.4 million was \$0.9 million below last year's three month period. Cash used in financing activities for the three months was \$18.3 million compared to \$25.9 million provided last year due to \$10.0 million less debt payments, netted against \$2.3 million less in net proceeds from stock option exercises and common stock repurchases.

During the quarter, total debt was reduced by \$18.7 million from \$80.9 million at March 31, 2003 to \$62.2 million at June 30, 2003. Debt-to-capitalization at June 30, 2003 was 11.2%, down from 14.4% at March 31, 2003.

The Company's Board of Directors has approved a cumulative total of 6,101,430 shares for repurchase since the Company became publicly held in April 1994. There are approximately 519,900 shares remaining under the Company's current repurchase authorization. The Company repurchased no shares during the three months ended June 30, 2003. At June 30, 2003 Centex Corporation owned approximately 64.9% of the outstanding shares of the Company's common stock. Under the terms of the distribution agreement entered into by the Company in connection with the spin-off, until the payment of the special one-time cash dividend, the Company has agreed not to repurchase any of the shares of its common stock except to offset exercises of employee stock options. See Note (O) of this report.

Critical Accounting Policies

Certain of the Company's critical accounting policies require the use of judgement in their application or require estimates of inherently uncertain matters. Although the Company's accounting policies are in compliance with generally accepted accounting principles, a change in the facts and circumstances of the underlying transactions could significantly change the application of the accounting policies and the resulting financial statement impact. Listed below are those policies that the Company believes are critical and require the use of complex judgement in their application.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets. The Company assesses long-lived assets in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets." SFAS No. 144 requires that long-lived assets be reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets is measured by comparing the carrying amount of an asset to future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. These evaluations for impairment are significantly impacted by estimates of revenues, costs and expenses and other factors. If these assets are

considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets.

Goodwill. The Company early adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets." Upon the adoption of SFAS No. 142, goodwill is no longer subject to amortization. Rather, goodwill will be subject to at least an annual assessment for impairment by applying a fair-value-based test. If the carrying amounts exceed the fair value, an impairment has occurred. The Company continually evaluates whether events and circumstances have occurred that indicate the remaining balance of goodwill may not be recoverable. In evaluating impairment, the Company estimates the sum of the expected future cash flows derived from such goodwill over its remaining life. Similar to the review for impairment of other long-lived assets, evaluations for impairment are significantly impacted by estimates of future prices for the Company's products, capital needs, economic trends and other factors.

Environmental Liabilities. The Company's operations are subject to state, federal and local environmental laws and regulations, which impose liability for cleanup or remediation of environmental pollution and hazardous waste arising from past acts; and require pollution control and prevention, site restoration and operating permits and/or approvals to conduct certain of its operations. The Company records environmental accruals when it is probable that a reasonably estimable liability has been incurred. Environmental remediation accruals are based on internal studies and estimates, including shared financial liability with third parties. Environmental expenditures that extend the life, increase the capacity, improve the safety or efficiency of assets or mitigate or prevent future environmental contamination may be capitalized. Other environmental costs are expensed when incurred.

Valuation of Accounts Receivable. The Company evaluates the collectibility of accounts receivable based on a combination of factors. In circumstances when the Company is aware of a specific customer's inability to meet its financial obligation to the Company, the balance in the reserve for doubtful accounts is evaluated, and if determined to be deficient, a specific amount will be added to the reserve. For all other customers, the reserve for doubtful accounts is determined by the length of time the receivables are past due or the status of the customer's financial condition.

Outlook

The outlook for Cement and Wallboard consumption during fiscal 2004 is favorable. While consumption of Cement and Wallboard remains at a high level, Cement and Wallboard pricing have shown softness. However, a Wallboard price increase of 12% has been announced for the second week of August 2003. There can be no assurance, however, that this price increase will hold. CXP's Paperboard operations continue to increase profitability. CXP's Gypsum Wallboard and Paperboard manufacturing cost continues to be negatively impacted by high natural gas cost. Assuming the Wallboard price increase holds, the Company expects to report fiscal 2004 earnings ranging from \$3.08 per diluted share to \$3.23 per diluted share (including an estimated \$2.0 million of pre-tax costs related to the proposed spin-off).

New Accounting Standards

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS No. 143, "Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations," which is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002. SFAS No. 143 requires legal obligations associated with the retirement of long-lived assets to be recognized at their fair value at the time that the obligations are incurred. Upon initial recognition of a liability, that cost is capitalized as part of the related long-lived

asset and allocated to expense over the useful life of the asset. The Company adopted SFAS No. 143 in the first quarter of Fiscal 2004 and the adoption of SFAS No. 143 did not have a material impact on the Company's financial position or results of operations.

In July 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS No. 146 "Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities." This statement addresses financial accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit or disposal activities and nullifies EITF Issue No. 94-3, "Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring)." The principal difference between SFAS No. 146 and EITF Issue No. 94-3 relates to SFAS No. 146's requirements for recognition of a liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity. SFAS No. 146 requires that a liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity be recognized when the liability is incurred. Under EITF Issue No. 94-3, a liability for an exit cost was recognized at the date an entity committed to an exit plan. The provisions of this Statement are effective for exit or disposal activities that are initiated after December 31, 2002. The adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Company.

In November 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Interpretation No. 45, "Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others" ("FIN 45"). FIN 45 requires a guarantor to recognize a liability for the fair value of the obligation at the inception of the guarantee. The disclosure requirements of FIN 45, which are already effective, are disclosed in Note (L) - - "Commitments and Contingencies," while the recognition provisions will be applied on a prospective basis to guarantees issued after December 31, 2002. As of April 1, 2003, the Company adopted FIN 45 and it did not have a material effect on its consolidated financial statements.

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standard Board issued Interpretation No. 46, "Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities," clarifying the application of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, "Consolidated Financial Statements" ("FIN 46"), to certain entities in which equity investors do not have the characteristics of a controlling financial interest or do not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support from other parties. The provisions of FIN 46 became effective on July 1, 2003. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of FIN 46 on its consolidated financial statements.

In December 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 148, "Accounting for Stock Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure." SFAS No. 148 provides for expanded disclosure concerning stock-based compensation, including disclosures in interim financial statements, and amends SFAS No. 123. SFAS No. 148's transition guidance and provisions for annual disclosures are effective for fiscal years ended after December 15, 2002. As of March 31, 2003, the Company adopted the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 148.

In May 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 150, "Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity." SFAS 150 establishes standards for how a company classifies and measures in its statement of financial position certain financial instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity. It requires that a company classify a financial instrument that is within its scope as a liability (or an asset in some circumstances) because that financial instrument embodies an obligation of the issuer. SFAS 150 is effective for financial instruments entered into or modified after May 31, 2003, and otherwise is effective at

the beginning of the first period beginning after June 15, 2003. The Company does not expect the provisions of this statement to have a significant impact on its statement of financial position or results of operation.

Forward-Looking Statements

Certain sections of this Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the Private Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-looking statements may be identified by the context of the statement and generally arise when the Company is discussing its beliefs, estimates or expectations. These statements involve known and unknown risks and uncertainties that may cause the Company's actual results to be materially different from planned or expected results. Those risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to:

_	levels of construction spending in major markets	_	unfavorable weather conditions during peak
			construction periods
	supply/demand structure of cement and wallboard industries	_	changes in and implementation of environmental and other
			governmental regulations
_	significant changes in the cost of fuel, energy and other raw	_	the ability to successfully identify, complete and efficiently integrate
	materials		acquisitions
_	availability of raw materials	_	the ability to successfully penetrate new markets
_	the cyclical nature of the Company's business	_	international events that may disrupt the world
			economy

In general, the Company is subject to the risks and uncertainties of the construction industry and of doing business in the U.S. The forward-looking statements are made as of the date of this report, and the Company undertakes no obligation to update them, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

unexpected operation difficulties

competition from new or existing competitors

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

national and regional economic conditions

seasonality of the Company's operations

The Company is exposed to market risks related to fluctuations in interest rates on its direct debt obligations. The Company utilizes derivative instruments, including interest rate swaps, in conjunction with its overall strategy to manage the debt outstanding that is subject to changes in interest rates. At June 30, 2003, the Company had approximately \$61.5 million in variable rate debt. The Company has entered into an interest rate swap agreement with a bank for a total notional amount of \$55.0 million. The agreement expires in August 2003. The swap agreement can be matched against \$55.0 million of variable-rate LIBOR indexed debt principal and will effectively fix the Company's interest rate on that debt at 4.493%, plus the spread on the Company's debt. Accordingly, using the unhedged balance of the Company's variable rate debt as of June 30, 2003 of \$6.5 million, if the applicable interest rates on such debt (LIBOR or commercial paper rates) increase by 100 basis points (1%) for a full year, the Company's pre-tax earnings and cash flows would decrease by approximately \$65,000 for such period. On the other hand, if such interest rates decrease by 100 basis points for a full year, the Company's pre-tax earnings and cash flows would increase by approximately \$65,000 for such period. The Company does not utilize forward or option contracts on foreign currencies or commodities, or other types of derivative financial instruments.

Except as set forth above, there have been no material changes in the Company's market risk from March 31, 2003. For further information regarding the Company's market risk, refer to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003 and Note (J) of this report.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

An evaluation has been performed under the supervision and with the participation of the Company's management, including the Company's Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of June 30, 2003. Based on that evaluation, the Company's management, including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, concluded that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of June 30, 2003, to provide reasonable assurance that the information required to be disclosed in the Company's reports filed or submitted under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the rules and forms of the Securities and Exchange Commission. There have been no changes in the Company's internal controls over financial reporting during the Company's last fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company's internal controls over financial reporting.

Part II. Other Information

Item 6. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K

- (a) Exhibits
 - 31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of Centex Construction Products, Inc. pursuant to Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
 - 31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of Centex Construction Products, Inc. pursuant to Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
 - 32.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of Centex Construction Products, Inc. pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
 - 32.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of Centex Construction Products, Inc. pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
- (b) Reports on Form 8-K

On April 21, 2003, the Company filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission a current report on Form 8-K announcing net earnings for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003.

All other items required under Part II are omitted because they are not applicable.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

		CENTEX CONSTRUCTION PRODUCTS, INC.
		Registrant
E	Ву:	/s/ STEVEN R. ROWLEY
November 24, 2003		Steven R. Rowley President and Chief Executive Officer (principal executive officer)
		/s/ ARTHUR R. ZUNKER, JR.
November 24, 2003		Arthur R. Zunker, Jr. Senior Vice President, Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer (principal financial and chief accounting officer)

Certification of Periodic Report Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Steven R. Rowley certify that:

- 1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q/A of Centex Construction Products, Inc.;
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- 4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:
 - a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
 - b. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 - c. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
- 5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 - a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 - b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Dated:	November 24, 2003
By:	/s/ STEVEN R. ROWLEY
	Steven R. Rowley
	Chief Executive Officer

Certification of Periodic Report Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Arthur R. Zunker, Jr. certify that:

- 1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q/A of Centex Construction Products, Inc.;
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- 4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:
 - a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
 - b. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 - c. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
- 5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 - a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 - b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting

Dated: November 24, 2003

By: /s/ ARTHUR R. ZUNKER, JR.

Arthur R. Zunker, Jr. Chief Financial Officer

Certification of Periodic Report Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

For the purpose of 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the undersigned, Steven R. Rowley, the Chief Executive Officer of Centex Construction Products, Inc. (the "Company"), hereby certifies that, to his knowledge:

- (i) the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A of the Company for the quarter ended June 30, 2003, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report") fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
- (ii) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operation of the Company.

Dated: November 24, 2003

By: /s/ STEVEN R. ROWLEY

Steven R. Rowley
Chief Executive Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished as an exhibit to the Form 10-Q/A pursuant to Item 601(b)(32) of Regulation S-K and Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and, accordingly, is not being filed as part of the Form 10-Q/A.

Certification of Periodic Report Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

For the purpose of 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the undersigned, Arthur R. Zunker, Jr., the Chief Financial Officer of Centex Construction Products, Inc. (the "Company"), hereby certifies that, to his knowledge:

- (i) the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A of the Company for the quarter ended June 30, 2003, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report") fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
- (ii) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operation of the Company.

Dated: November 24, 2003

By: /s/ ARTHUR R. ZUNKER, JR.

Arthur R. Zunker, Jr.
Chief Financial Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished as an exhibit to the Form 10-Q/A pursuant to Item 601(b)(32) of Regulation S-K and Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and, accordingly, is not being filed as part of the Form 10-Q/A.